MARYLAND HISTORICAL TRUST NR Eligible: yes

DETERMINATION OF ELIGIBILITY FORM no
"ropeny Name:  Taylorville Methodist Episcopal Church - Inventory Number: WO0-290

Address: 11252 Adkins Road - - Historic district: yes X no
City:  Berlin Zip Code: 21811 County: Worcester
USGS Quadrangle(s):  Berlin B
Property Owner:  Taylorville ME Church B Tax Account [D Number: | 03-012484
Tax Map Parcel Number(s): 108 Tax Map Number: 15
Project: MD 589: US 113 to US 50 Agency:  Maryland State Highway Administration

Agency Prepared By: A&HC, Inc.
Preparer's Name: Erin Hammerstedt Date Prepared: 1/14/2008

Documentation is presented in:

Preparer's Eligibility Recommendation: ~ Eligibility recommended N X  Eligibility not recommended

Criteria: A B C D Considerations: A B C D E F G

Complete if the property is a contributing or non-contributing resource to a NR district/property:

Name of the District/Property:

Inventory Number: o Eligible:  yes Listed: yes

.Site visit by MHT Staf yes X no Name: Date:

Description of Property and Justification:  (Please attach map and photo)

Physical Description: The Taylorville Methodist Episcopal Church stands on the west side of Adkins Road, which intersects MD
589 in Taylorville, Worcester County, Maryland. The one-story, gable-front frame church faces Adkins Road on the east
(Photographs 1 through 5). The main block of the building is rectangular in plan, with three arched windows on each side eaves
side. These windows contain six-over-nine sash under the arch, with the panes containing marbled colored glass. A bell tower
punctuates the eastern end of the fagade. This tower contains a cubical louvered bell chamber topped by a modern steeple. A
gabled entry wing projects from the front of the main block, in front of and below the bell tower. This contains and entrance on
the south side, pointed arch window on the east, and arched window matching those in the main block on the north. The building
stands on a brick foundation, is clad in vinyl siding, and has an asphalt shingled roof. The colored glass windows are covered by
what appears to be a UV protective Plexiglas. A concrete handicap ramp with aluminum baluster was added in 2002,

The church is surrounded on three sides by a cemetery (Photographs 1 through 6). The front of the cemetery is defined by a rock
face concrete block retaining wall; no fence or wall delineates the boundary of the cemetery on the other sides. Graves are, for the
most part, organized in rows, although some are grouped in identifiable family plots. Stones in the cemetery range in date from the
1850s in to 2000; the oldest stone noted was 1843, although not all were studied. The cemetery does not possess any designed
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. landscape features, such as paths for circulation, plantings, or other architectural features.

This property also includes a building that appears to be a parsonage or Sunday school building (Photograph 7). The main block
of this building is one story with a side gable roof. A large shed addition has been attached to the front, and a gable ell and two
subsequent shed additions have been made to the rear. The building is clad in modern siding, and has one-over-one windows.

Brief History: The Taylorville Methodist Episcopal Church was originally built in 1851 in the mill village known as Taylorville
and named for the family of Laban J. Taylor. Based on one 1845 grave stone, it appears that the cemetery may slightly pre-date
the church. Several buildings were present in Taylorville in 1865, including the church.

By 1877, the village consisted of more than seventeen buildings, including a grist mill, a saw mill and a Methodist Episcopal
Church, with a school house just north of the community. Thirteen residences were present in Taylorville, including two belonging
to J. Casper and E. Grey on the east side of the road in Taylorville, across from the Methodist Episcopal Church. The mill closed
in1879, and by 1901, the gristmill and sawmill were gone, as were eight of the town’s thirteen residences. Despite the closure of
the mill, the church was remodeled in 1888, and again in 1900. These modifications took place during the period in which many
buildings in the town were disappearing. The fact that the church not only remained, but was improved, is a testament to its
importance among its members. The sidewalk and concrete block retaining wall were constructed in 1910; however, much of that
work has been masked by a concrete and aluminum handicap ramp, which was added in 2002. The building continues to be
improved today: the church has been clad in vinyl siding, and a protective window covering installed over the windows.

National Register Evaluation: The Taylorville Methodist Episcopal Church is not eligible for inclusion in the National Register
under Criteria A, B, or C, and it does not meet Criteria Considerations A or D. Since its construction in the mid-nineteenth
century, the church has experienced a loss of integrity both architecturally, through the addition of modern materials, and in terms
of its historic setting and association within its community. Once located within the small mill village of Taylorville, the virtual
disappearance of this community beginning as early as the turn-of-the-twentieth century has resulted in a loss of historic
association. Taylorville itself appears to have had questionable importance given its brief occupation and then relative
disappearance. The construction of MD 589 in the mid-twentieth century to straighten the existing roadway resulted in the

. complete bypass of the church and cemetery, which previously had sat along the main road between St. Martin’s Church and Grays
Corner.

The church is not directly associated with events or trends that have made a significant contribution to the broad patterns of our
history. Taylorsville is no longer an intact community. Most of the buildings that once comprised the village have disappeared,
including the gristmill that gave the village its reason for existence. MD 589 has bypassed the main road and resulted in the
modern residential and commercial construction that now characterizes the area and has significantly changed the setting of the
area. The church no longer has an association with a community and is not considered to be a prominent historic or religious
landmark in the area; thus, it is not eligible under Criterion A. The building is not known to be associated with any person of
particular importance on a local, state, or national level, and so it is not eligible under Criterion B. The church is an unremarkable
example of a common type of rural church that has been altered with modern materials. Due to a loss of integrity, it does not
embody the distinctive architectural characteristics of its type or period of construction, nor does it represent the work of a master
or possess high artistic value. Therefore, the property is not eligible under Criterion C. The archaeological potential of the
property has not been evaluated, so the property cannot be determined eligible under Criterion D. Because the church is not
significant for its history or architecture, or for its artistic value, it does not satisfy Criteria Consideration A. No people of
transcendent importance are known to be buried in the cemetery, so it does not satisfy Criteria Consideration D.
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WO0-290 1851, 1888

Taylorville United Methodist Church

Taylorville

Public worship

The Taylorville United Methodist Church is one of the few nineteenth
century structures that defines the former mill community of Taylorville.
Named for Laban J. Taylor and his family, the village contained several
residences, grist and saw mills along with the Methodist Episcopal church

by the time the 1877 Lake, Griffing, and Stevenson atlas was published.

Laban J. Taylor, one of the largest land owners in the vicinity
during the mid nineteenth century, donated the land for the church. On
November 26, 1856, Laban and his wife Sally, transferred a three-quarter
acre parcel of land to the trustees of what was then called St. Andrew's
Methodist Episcopal Church South. The deed for the property included the
description, "...beginning at a maple standing at the edge of Taylors Mill
pond & thence running East 15 poles to the county road leading from

Taylors Mill to St. Martins Church"

The foundation datestone of the church documents the initial
construction of the building in 1851 as well as a remodeling in 1888. The
significance of another date, September 30, 1900, is uncertain. Also of
interest is an inscription in the front concrete pavement documenting
additional work on the property. It reads, "Those who did work in 1910,
W. T. Pennewell, Z. W. Jones, S. W. Jones, H. Pruitt, F. D. Cathell, G. H.
Hill, G. P. Collier, G. R. Jones, J. Casper, J. P. Bunting, J. H. Short, S.
T. Quillen, G. Pointer, C. Powell, Ike Holland, G. Clark, C. Clark, J.

Phillips, and J. Elliot.
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Survey No. W0-290

Magi No.

Maryland Historical Trust
State Historic Sites Inventory Form DOE __yes _ no

1. Name (indicate preferred name)

historic TAYLORVILLE METHODIST EPISCOPAL CHURCH SOUTH

and/or common

2. Location

street & number West side of Adkins Road — not for publication

city, town Taylorville —_ vicinity of congressional district First

state Maryland county Worcester

3. Classification

Category Ownership Status Present Use

____ district — public _x_ occupied ____agriculture _____ museum

_® building(s) = __ private ___ unoccupied ___ commercial —__park

— structure __both ____work in progress _ educational ____ private residence

___ site Public Acquisition Accessible ____entertainment X religious

object ____in process _X_yes: restricted _____government ____ scientific
‘ — being considered ____ yes: unrestricted —_industrial —__ transportation
x not applicable _  po ____ military ___other:

4- Owner Of Property (give names and mailing addresses of all owners)

name Trustees of Taylorville Methodist Church
street & number Adkins Road telephone no.:
city, town Taylorville state and zip code MD

5. Location of Legal Description

courthouse, registry of deeds, etc. Worcester County Clerk of Court jiper
street & number Worcester County Courthouse folio
city, town Snow Hill state MD 21863

6. Representation in Existing #istorical surveys

title

date . _federal ___state ___county __ local

‘oﬂtory for survey records

city, town state




7. Description Survey No. W0-290

Condition Check one Check one
— excellent — deteriorated ___ unaltered x__ original site
_* good ____ruins __*altered ___moved date of move

___ fair ____ unexposed .

Prepare both a summary paragraph and a general description of the resource and its
various elements as it exists today.

The Taylorville Methodist Episcopal Church South stands on the west
side of Adkins Road which intersects MD 589 in Taylorville, Worcester
County, Maryland. The single-story frame church faces east with the
gable roof oriented on an east/west axis.

Built in 1851 and remodeled in 1888, the single story gable front
frame church is supported by a common bond brick foundation, and it is
sheathed with a layer of vinyl siding. The medium pitched asphalt shingle
roof has slightly extended eaves. A cemetery surrounds the church on
three sides. Rising on the front of the building is an entrance and bell
tower.

The east (main) elevation is a gabled facade, and the entrance
tower projects slightly from the main wall surface. The heavily molded
double front doors are topped by a Gothic arched colored glass transom.
The belfry has has been modified with vented sides. A shallow pitched
pyramidal roof tops the tower. Fixed in the corner of the foundation is a
datestone inscribed, "Taylorville M. E. Church South, Erected 1851,
Remodeled 1888, September 30, 1900."

The north and south sides of the church are alike with three .
unevenly spaced arched windows filled with opaque colored glass panes.
The west (rear) elevation is marked by a shed roofed altar extension
lighted by single-pane side windows.

The interior was not seen.

Impressed in the front walk at the southeast corner is the following
inscription, "Those who did work in 1910 W. T. Pennewell, Z. W. Jones, S.
W. Jones, H. Pruitt, F. D. Cathell, G. H. Hill, G. P. Collier, G. R. Jones,
J. Casper, J. P. Bunting, J. H. Short, S. T. Quillen, G. Pointer, C. Powell,
Ike Holland, G. Clark, C. Clark, J. Phillips, J. Elliot, Repaved 1977.




8. Significance Survey No. W0-290

Period Areas of Significance—Check and justify below

—prehistoric ___ archeology-prehistoric ____ community planning ____ landscape architecture _X_ religion

—1400-1499 ____ archeology-historic —_ conservation — law —__ science

t 1500-1599 ____ agriculture —___economics —literature ____ sculpture
1600-1699 __x architecture ____education —___ military —_social/

___1700-1799 ____ art ____engineering _____ music humanitarian

_X 1800-1899 ___ commerce ___ exploration/settiement ____ philosophy — theater

X 1900~ ___ communications —_ industry ___ politics/government ____ transportation
—_invention __ other (specify)

Specificdates [85], 1888, 1900 Builder/Architect

check: Applicable Criteria: _A _ B xC _ D
and/or
Applicable Exception: x A B C D E F G

Level of Significance: _ nationmal _ state x local

Prepare both a summary paragraph of significance and a general statement of history and
support.

The Taylorville United Methodist Church is one of the few nineteenth
century structures that defines the former mill community of Taylorville.
Named for Laban J. Taylor and his family the village contained several
residences, grist and saw mills along with the Methodist Episcopal church
by the time the 1877 Lake, Griffing and Stevenson atlas was published.
Mid to late twentieth century development, especially Ocean Downs
racetrack, has significantly altered the historic appearance of this
community. Aside from a layer of vinyl siding and a modification of the
tower, the single-story frame church retains its basic integrity with
. pointed or round arched window openings. A datestone in the foundation
documents the 1851 construction date along with a remodeling in 1888.




9. Major Bibliographical References Survey No. W0-290

10. Geographical Data

Acreage of nominated property
Quadrangle name Quadrangle scale

UTM References {o NOT complete UTM references
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Verbal boundary description and justification

List all states and counties for properties overlapping state or county boundaries

state code county code

state code county code

11. Form Prepared By

name/title Paul B, Touart, Architectural Historian

organization Worcester County date 3/1/89

street & number Worcester County Courthouse telephone 301-632-1194
city or town Snow Hill state MD 21863

The Maryland Historic Sites Inventory was officially created by
an Act of the Maryland Legislature to be found in the Annotated
Code of Maryland, Article 41, Section 181 KA, 1974 supplement.

The survey and inventory are being prepared for information and
record purposes only and do not constitute any infringement of

individual property rights.

return to: Maryland Historical Trust
Shaw House
21 State Circle
Annapolis, Maryland 21401
(301) 269-2438




W0-290

TAYLORVILLE METHODIST EPISCOPAL CHURCH SOUTH
Taylorville
Deed of gift

JAP 1/143 Laban J. Taylor and Sally Taylor
to
11/26/1856 Trustees of St. Andrews Church

John R. Pitts, Robert Pitts, James Massey,
James T. Jones, and Curtis W. Jacobs,
Trustees 1in trust for the use and benefit
of the Methodist Episcopal Church South

$5.00 3/4 acre

Beginning at a maple standing at the edge
of Taylors Mill pond & thence running East
15 poles to the county road leading from
Taylors Mill to St. Martins Church
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